# AGREEMENT

Between

CITY OF NEWARK

And

AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES AFL-CIO,

LOCAL 2297

(SUPERVISORS)

January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2018



**Jorthern Regional Office** 

1099 Wall St West, Suite 396 Lyndhurst, NJ 07071 Phone: (201) 933-3987 Fax: (201) 933-4151

Central Regional Office Nottingham Village Square

653A Whitehorse-Hamilton Sq. Rd. Hamilton, NJ 08690

Phone: (609) 586-9093 Fax: (609) 586-7499

**Southern Regional Office** 

321 Leonard Cake Rd P.O. Box 207 Franklinville, NJ 08322 Phone: (856) 512-2000 Fax: (856) 512-2193

> Steve Tully Executive Director

Debbie Parks Associate Director

Ronald McMullen President

Kevin B. Williams Vice President

Frances Cintron Secretary Treasurer

Linda Bethea Recording Secretary

Executive Board:

Elijah Addison Coral Dayon Michelle Del Vecchio Glennis Folks Matthew Gemenden David Griffin Michael Jackson Lamar Lewis Yesenia Lopez Michael Messner William Murawski Gerald Murray Tara Myers Lennox Peters Erich Sodtalbers Shirley Suddoth-Lewis Ramona Thomas

> Trustees: Edwin Perez

Ivette Sanchez Robert Turner To All MEMBERS OF AFSCME LOCAL 2297 (Supervisors)

Dear Brothers and Sisters:

In order for you to be fully aware of your rights under your AFSCME Contract, the Union has had this contract booklet printed for every member. This Contract covers the period January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2018.

In Solidarity,

Steve Tully

**Executive Director** 

**AFSCME New Jersey Council 63** 



# Table of Contents

PREAMBLE	1
ARTICLE I	
RECOGNITION	2
ARTICLE II	0.00
MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	3
ARTICLE III	
SENIORITY	4
ARTICLE IV	
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	5
ARTICLE V	
UNION REPRESENTATIVES	8
ARTICLE V (a)	
WORK FORCE CHANGES	9
ARTICLE VI	
WORK WEEK	11
ARTICLE VII	
OVERTIME	13
ARTICLE VIII	
COMPENSATION	14
ARTICLE IX	
HOLIDAYS	15
ARTICLE X	
VACATION LEAVE	16
ARTICLE XI	
HEALTH INSURANCE AND DEATH BENEFIT	18
ARTICLE XII	
SICK LEAVE/BEREAVEMENT	23
ARTICLE XIII	
LEAVES OF ABSENCES	26

ARTICLE XIV	
EMPLOYEE TRAINING	27
ARTICLE XV	
EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE	28
ARTICLE XVI	
BULLETIN BOARDS	30
ARTICLE XVII	
DEDUCTIONS FROM SALARY	31
ARTICLE XVIII	
REPRESENTATION FEE	32
ARTICLE XIX	
NO STRIKE AND NO LOCKOUT PLEDGE	35
ARTICLE XX	
NON-DISCRIMINATION	36
ARTICLE XXI	
LONGEVITY PROGRAM	37
ARTICLE XXII	
SEPARABILITY AND SAVINGS	38
ARTICLE XXIII	
MISCELLANEOUS	39
ARTICLE XXIV	
FULLY BARGAINED PROVISIONS	40
ARTICLE XXV	
DURATION	41
Article XXVI	
EXCLUSIVITY	42
ARTICLE XXVII	
UNIFORMS	43

#### PREAMBLE

This Agreement made and entered into this day of January 2015, by and between the City of Newark, New Jersey, in the County of Essex, a Municipal Corporation of the State of New Jersey (hereinafter referred to as the "City") and Local 2297, AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES, AFL-CIO (SUPERVISORS), (hereinafter referred to as the "Union") represents the complete and final understanding of all bargainable issues between the City and the Union and is designated to maintain and promote a harmonious relationship between the City and each of its employees who are covered by Article I Recognition, in order that more efficient and progressive public service may be rendered.

## ARTICLE I

# RECOGNITION

In accordance with the "Certification of Representation" of the Public Employment Relations Commission dated April 15, 1971 (Docket No. RO-184) the City recognized the Union as the exclusive collective negotiations agent for all supervisors within the meaning of the Act, i.e., those with the power to hire, discharge, discipline, or effectively recommend the same, employed by the City of Newark, New Jersey but excluding office clerical, craft and professional employees, managerial executives, policemen and nurses supervisors, covered in the aforementioned Certification and more specifically enumerated by job titles in Appendix A.

## ARTICLE II

## MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

- A. The City, hereby retains and reserves unto itself, without limitation, all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it prior to the signing of this Agreement by the Laws and Constitution of the State of New Jersey and of the United States including but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the following rights:
- 1. To the executive management and administrative control of the City Government and its properties and facilities, and the activities of its employees.
- To hire all employees and subject to the provisions of the law, to determine their qualifications and conditions for continued employment, or assignment and to promote and transfer employees.
- To suspend, demote, discharge or take other disciplinary action for good and just cause according to the law.
- B. The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, authority, duties or responsibilities of the City, the adoption of policies, rules, and regulations and practices in the furtherance thereof, and the use of judgment and discretion in connection therewith shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this Agreement and then only to the extent such specific and express terms hereof are in conformance with the Constitution and Laws of the State of New Jersey and the United States.
- C. Nothing herein shall be construed to deny or restrict the City of its rights, responsibilities and authority under R. S. 40, and R. S. 11 or any other federal, state, county or local laws or ordinances.

#### ARTICLE III

## SENIORITY

- A. Seniority is defined as length of service of an employee commencing with his/her latest date of hire.
- B. The City will annually post a Seniority List. A copy will be furnished to the local union posted.
- C. In conformance with CIVIL SERVICE and other applicable regulations, employees will be given preference in layoffs, recalls and vacation schedules.
- D. An employee's continuous service shall be broken by voluntary resignation, discharge and retirement. However, if an employee returns to work, in any capacity within two years, Civil Service and Longevity ordinance provisions regarding restoration of Seniority shall be applied.

#### ARTICLE IV

## GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

#### A. PURPOSE

- The purpose of this procedure is to secure, at the lowest possible level, and
  equitable solution to problems which may arise affecting the terms and
  conditions of this Agreement. The parties agree that this procedure will be
  kept as informal as may be appropriate.
- Nothing contained herein shall be construed as limiting the right of any
  employee having a grievance to discuss said grievance with a member of
  the supervisory staff and having the grievance adjusted without the
  intervention of the Union.

#### B. DEFINITION

The term "grievance" as used herein is any controversy arising over the interpretation, application or alleged violation of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and may be raised by an individual, the Union, or the City.

# C. STEPS OF GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE:

The following constitutes the sole and exclusive method for resolving grievances between the parties covered by this Agreement. The Union may proceed through each step of this procedure even without a written response from any City officials through Step Five, Arbitration. Any step of the grievance procedure may be waived by mutual consent.

#### STEP ONE (1)

- a. An aggrieved employee shall institute action under the provisions hereof within ten (10) working days of the occurrence of the grievance and an earnest effort shall be made to settle the difference between the aggrieved employee and his immediate supervisor for the purpose of resolving the matter informally. Failure to act within said ten (10) working days shall be deemed to constitute an abandonment of the grievance. If the aggrieved employee is confronted with a possible suspension, then the Union representative shall be present in each step hereafter.
- b. The Supervisor shall render a decision within five (5) working days after receipt of the grievance.

#### STEP TWO (2)

a. In the event a satisfactory settlement has not been reached the employee shall, in writing and signed, file his complaint with the Division Head (or

- his/her representative) within ten (10) working days following the determination by the Supervisor.
- b. The Division Head or his/her representative shall render a decision in writing within ten (10) working days from the receipt of the complaint.

#### STEP THREE (3)

- a. In the event the grievance has not been resolved at Step Two (2), then within ten (10) working days following the determination of the Division Head, or within ten (10) working days following the time allotted for such determination, the matter may be submitted to the Director of the Department. The Stewart shall have the right to be present at any step of the grievance procedure.
- b. The Director of the Department, or his/her representative shall review the matter and make a determination within ten (10) working days from day receipt of the complaint.

#### STEP FOUR (4)

- a. In the event the grievance has not been resolved at Step Three (3), then within ten (10) working days following the determination of the Director of the Department, the matter may be submitted to the Business Administrator.
- b. The Business Administrator or his/her representative shall review the matter and make a determination within ten (10) working days from his/her receipt of the complaint.

#### STEP FIVE (5) - Arbitration

- a. Should the aggrieved person be dissatisfied with the decision of the Business Administrator, the Union may within twenty (20) working days request arbitration. The arbitrator shall be chosen in accordance with the Rules of the Public Employment Relations Commission.
- b. However, no arbitration hearing shall be scheduled sooner than thirty (30) days after the final decision by the Business Administrator. In the event the aggrieved elects to pursue Civil Service Procedures, the arbitration hearing shall be cancelled and the matter withdrawn from arbitration. The Union shall pay whatever costs may have been incurred in processing the case to arbitration.
- c. The arbitrator shall be bound by the provisions of this Agreement and restricted to the application of the facts involved in the grievance as presented to him/her in the grievance. The arbitrator shall not have the authority to add to, modify, detract from or alter in any way the provisions

- of this Agreement or any amendment or supplement thereto or add new provisions to this Agreement or any amendment or supplement thereto.
- d. The cost for the services of the arbitrator shall be borne equally between the City and the Union. Any other expenses incurred, including but not limited to the presentation of witnesses, shall be paid by the party incurring same.
- e. The arbitrator shall set forth his/her finding of facts and reasons for making the award which shall be binding on the parties, within thirty (30) days after conclusion of the arbitration hearing unless agreed to otherwise by the parties.

#### D. <u>CITY GRIEVANCES</u>

Grievances initiated by the City shall be filed directly with the Union within ten (10) calendar days after the event giving rise to the grievance has occurred. A meeting shall be held within ten (10) calendar days after filing a grievance between the representative of the City and the Union in an earnest effort to adjust the difference between the parties. In the event no such adjustment has been satisfactorily made, either party may file for arbitration in accordance with Step Five above.

In the event the City elects to withdraw the matter from arbitration, the City shall pay whatever costs may have incurred in processing the case to arbitration.

## ARTICLE V

# UNION REPRESENTATIVES

- A. Accredited representatives of the Union may enter the City facilities or premises for the purpose of observing working conditions or assisting in the adjustment of grievances. When the Union desires to have such a representative entered the City's facilities or premises, it will request such permission from the appropriate City representative. Permission will not be unreasonably withheld, provided there should be no interference with the normal business of City government.
- B. There shall be no Union meetings on city time. Union meetings may be held on City property provided such facilities are available and further provided that permission is secured in advance from the appropriate department head.
- C. The President and Chief Shop Stewart shall act as representatives to process all grievances through the established procedure. Grievance at Step 1 shall be handled by the Local Union representative. The employees shall be permitted to spend a reasonable amount of time to process grievances provided there is no interference with City services.
- D. The City agrees to furnish to the Union annually a list of new employees hired, their job classification, home address and type of employment (provisional, temporary, seasonal, permanent).
- E. Employees who have been designated as negotiations representatives of the Union, up to a maximum of one, from each division, shall suffer no loss in regular straight time pay.

## ARTICLE V (a)

## **WORK FORCE CHANGES**

- A. The City agrees that new work rules or changes in existing rules affecting working conditions will first be negotiated with the Union prior to implementation, except in an emergency situation. The City will give serious consideration to the views of the Union.
- B. Selection of candidates from and appropriate Civil Service Eligibility List shall apply whenever a job opening occurs in a competitive Civil Service Job Classification.
- C. Candidates on an established promotional list shall be given preference in the filing of job openings according to Civil Service procedures.
- D. As Eligibility Lists are exhausted or are nearing their expiration date, the City will make the necessary request of Civil Service for a new examination to ensure as far as practical and possible that there will be an Eligibility List available at all times.
- E. With the exception of Veterans preference, the City will make its selection to fill a vacancy from among the three (3) highest scores on the promotional list in a manner consistent with Civil Service Regulations, procedures and case law.
- F. Temporary job openings are defined as job vacancy that may periodically develop in any job classification because of illness, vacation or leave of absence or for any other reason and the budget line has funds available. Employees assigned to temporary job openings shall be paid the wage rate established for the job or their own wage rate whichever is higher as per above budget consideration.
- G. Demotions as used in this Article means the reassignment, not requested by the employee, of an employee from a position in classification or in another job classification and shall be made in accordance with Civil Service procedures.

An employee who is reassigned to his previous job from a higher classification to which he was provisionally appointed due to his inability to prove to the City that he is able to fulfill the standards of the job, or pass a Civil Service examination required for appointment to that job, or who voluntarily relinquishes the job, shall not be considered as demoted.

- H. In the event the City plans to lay off permanent employees, for any reason, the City shall notify the Union of such plans before the layoff notices are issued. Layoffs will be made in accordance with Civil Service rules and regulations.
- The City will notify the Union at least one week prior to the decision to consolidate or eliminate a position covered by Article I of this Agreement. Insofar as possible and practicable, the City will delay action implementing its decision until after the Union has had at least one discussion with the City on the matter.

J. Effective October 1, 1999, a five-day notice will be given to affected employees for any changes in work hours.

#### ARTICLE VI

#### WORK WEEK

- A. The normal work week for the employee shall consist of forty (40) hours per week, eight (8) hours per day, five (5) days. However, the present work week schedule for each service shall remain in effect.
- B. Insofar as possible, employees who are scheduled to report for work and who present themselves for work as schedule shall be assigned work for the job for which they were scheduled, except when there are emergencies which require services to be maintained.
  - Employees who are required to work as part of a group or detail shall report to their assigned locations on time. If the employee reports in late and his assigned group or detail has departed for an assignment, or his place was assigned to another employee because of his lateness, the employee shall be sent home for this day without any compensation.
- C. An employee called for emergency duty after he has left the premises will receive a minimum of four (4) hours work at the rate of time and one half. In the event such time work is contiguous with his regular shift, he/she shall receive the time and one half rate only for those hours outside of the regular shift.
- D. Superintendents, Assistant Superintendents or persons acting in such capacities may, in addition to their regular work week, be assigned to standby status either for an entire week or weekend at a time. Qualified volunteers will be accepted on a rotating basis. In the event no such qualified volunteer is available, the City may assign an individual to standby status. Involuntary assignments will be made following the rule that the individual with the lowest classification seniority will be assigned first and thereafter assignments will rotate according to seniority. The hours and compensation for such standby status will be as follows:
  - Weekly standby hours shall consist of all hours outside the employee's of regular work schedule including Saturdays and Sundays and shall be compensated for at the rate of straight time in the amount of twelve (12) hours.
  - 2. Weekend standby time shall commence at the close of the regular work day on Friday (on or about 5:00 P.M.) and be concluded at the beginning of the regular work day on the following Monday (on or about 8:00 A.M.) and shall be compensated for on the basis of six (6) hours of straight time of ten (10) hours of straight time.
  - 3. In addition to the foregoing compensation, whenever an employee on standby is required to actually work he shall work for a maximum of four (4) hours in a single day at straight time. Any time worked beyond such four (4) hours in a single day shall be compensated for at the rate of time and one-half.
  - 4. In Employees who are on standby status shall be available to report for duty within one (i) hour of notification to the address or telephone number recorded at the location of the job assignment. Failure to report within the one hour limitation shall result in the

loss of standby pay for that particular assignment. If, during the period of standby assignment, an emergency arises which will prevent the assigned employee from being available for an emergency call, he shall be responsible to notify his supervisor so that arrangements may be made for substitution.

#### ARTICLE VII

#### OVERTIME

A. <u>Definition of Overtime:</u> Authorized work performed in excess of the assigned normal daily working hours for each class of position shall be considered over time. The provision of this Article shall apply to such overtime which has been properly directed and authorized by the appropriate head or his/her designee.

# B. Compensatory Time Off or Cash Payment for overtime

 Employees who are required to work in excess of their normal work week shall be compensated in cash or compensatory time off at the discretion of the City in accordance with the schedule noted below:

#### Overtime

Overtime compensation shall be at straight time up to the 40<sup>th</sup> hour worked in each week. Overtime compensation at time-and-a-half (1.5) shall be calculated on all overtime hours after the first 40 hours. Paid time off (i.e. sick (with appropriate medical documentation), Vacation, Holiday, Compensatory time, etc.) shall count toward the 40-hours worked in each week.

- a. Work beyond forty (40) hours in any calendar week shall be compensated for at one and one-half (1 ½) hourly rate.
- C. Employees who are required to work on a holiday shall be compensated in cash on the following basis.
  - 1. Employees who are regularly scheduled to work on a holiday who have worked less than forty (40) hours in that work week shall receive straight time for the holidays as such and straight time for all work on the holiday. Those employees who have worked forty (40) or more hours in that work week exclusive of holidays shall receive straight time for the holiday as such and time and one-half for all time worked on the holiday. Employees who have worked the day prior to and the day after the holiday to be eligible for holiday pay unless for legitimate reasons of illness.
  - Employees who are required to work on a holiday on an emergency basis shall be compensated for on the following schedule:
    - a. Those employees who have worked less than forty parentheses 40) hours in that work week shall receive straight time pay for the holiday as such plus time and one half for all time worked on the holiday.
    - b. Those employees who have worked over forty (40) hours in that work week exclusive of the holiday shall receive straight time pay for the holiday as such plus double time (2 times) for all time worked on the holiday.
      All overtime work, whether scheduled or for emergency reasons, shall be assigned to all employees on an equitable basis.

## ARTICLE VIII

#### COMPENSATION

A. For each year of the contract, the nine steps salary range for each title will remain in effect. Employees shall progress through the salary range from step 1 through and including step 9. Each step in the salary range will be the equivalent of one (1) salary increment, effective January 1 of each year.

Effective January 1, 2015, the base salary of all employees shall be increased by 0%.

Effective January 1, 2016, the 2015 base salary of all employee shall be increased by 0%. However, all eligible employees shall receive a one-time stipend of one thousand four hundred dollars (\$1,400.00).

Effective January 1, 2017, the 2016 base salary of all employee shall be increased by 2%.

Effective January 1, 2018, the 2017 base salary of all employees shall be increased by 2%.

Upon expiration of the contract, no salary adjustments or increases at until a successor Agreement is reached.

- B. All compensation procedures, promotions, increases and increment schedules shall be according to applicable and adopted ordinances.
- C. An employee is assigned to work in a higher title or position he shall be paid at the corresponding earned step of the range in the high position.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Eligible employees are defined as those active employees who are on City payroll at the time that the distribution is due.

#### ARTICLE IX

# **HOLIDAYS**

- Paid holidays shall be granted to all employees subject to this Agreement in accordance with the schedule ordained by the Municipal Council to be effective commencing January of each year.
- 2. Each employee shall work the day before the holiday and the day after the holiday or be in pay status to receive pay for said holiday.
- 3. When a City of Newark recognized holiday falls on an employees' regularly scheduled day off, the employee shall be given and alternative "day off" to be used within that pay period as determined by the department.

#### ARTICLE X

#### VACATION LEAVE

- A. Annual vacation leave with pay shall be earned according to New Jersey State Department of Civil Service Rules and Regulations and as provided in Section 2:14-5, Title 2 of the Revised Ordinances of the City of Newark, New Jersey, 1966, as follows:
  - Effective January 1, 1988, every permanent or continuously employed temporary employee in the classified service of the City shall be granted the following annual vacation leave with pay in and for each calendar year:

Up to one year of service, one working day vacation for each month of service.

After one year and up to 9 years of service, 12 working days vacation.

After nine years and up to 19 years of service, 16 working days vacation.

After 19 years of service, 21 working days vacation.

After 25 years of service, 23 working days vacation.

- 2. Where in any calendar year the vacation leave or any part thereof is not granted by reason of the pressure of the City's business such vacation periods or part there of not granted shall accumulate and shall be granted during the next succeeding year only. In determining all vacation leaves, the year of service of such employees prior and subsequent to the adoption of this section shall be used.
- 3. Vacation Leave Do Upon Separation.
  - a. An employee who is retiring or who has been otherwise separated shall be entitled to the vacation allowance for the current year prorated upon the number of months worked in the calendar year in which the separation or retirement becomes

- effective and any vacation leave which may have been carried over from the preceding calendar.
- b. Whenever a permanent employee dies having to his credit any annual vacation leave, there shall be calculated and paid to his/her estate, a sum of money equal to the compensation figured on his/her salary rate at the time of his/her death.

#### ARTICLE XI

# HEALTH INSURANCE AND DEATH BENEFIT

The provisions of this Article shall be administered in accord with the provisions of P.L.2011, Chapter 78, as presently provided.

The City, as a distressed municipality, has joined the State Health Benefits Program. As a result of said participation, the State Health Benefits Program may change benefits and/or benefits levels currently offered. The City has no input into or control over any such changes. However, as a potential participating SHBP employer, the City is governed by any such changes. Accordingly, when SHBP changes a benefit/benefit level, the benefit and/or benefit level in this agreement will be adjusted to reflect the change. The City will not be liable for any such change in benefit level or the impact to any such change. In addition, no grievance or complaint against the City challenging any such change can be processed under the grievance procedures of this agreement or in any court of law or administrative agency. This provision does not preclude the Union, or an individual employee of the City from filing an appropriate challenge against the State for any such change. The City will provide notification of any such changes to the Union and employees. This provision covers all plans administered under the New Jersey State Health Benefits Programs including but not limited to healthcare, prescription drugs, etc.

The City shall provide Health Insurance, Dental Plan, and Prescription Plan to all eligible and enrolled employees and eligible dependents up to age 26 and eligible Civil Union partners as follows:

#### A. MEDICAL PLAN

Effective January 1, 2016, the City will eliminate the Traditional Plan. The employee will be eligible for a choice of:

- 1. Horizon Direct Access Plan; OR
- 2. Horizon Exclusive Provider Organization (EPO).

#### B. DENTAL PLAN

The employee will be eligible for his choice of:

- 1. Horizon Dental Choice Plan E (no benefits provided if utilizing the services of an out-of-network provider); OR
- 2. Horizon Dental Option Plan (Open Panel 80/20 plan); OR
- 3. Group Dental Health Administration (no benefits provided if utilizing the services of an out-of-network provider; this plan is available only to currently enrolled subscribers-no new enrollments will be accepted).

#### C. PRESCRIPTION PLAN

The employee and their eligible dependents will be eligible for a Prescription Drug Plan.

Effective January 1, 2017, the City will create a formulary for Prescription coverage and increase the cost for brand name drugs. Including, but not limited to Retail Prescription Drugs:

Tier 1: Generic Drugs or Supply (\$5),

Tier 2: Preferred Brand Drugs or Supply (\$15), and

Tier 3: Non-Preferred Brand Drugs or Supply (\$25).

Mail Order Prescription Drugs: Generic Drug and Supply (\$0),

Preferred Brand Name Drug or Supply (\$5), and

Non-Preferred Brand Name Drug or Supply (\$10).

D. An employee represented by this collective bargaining unit who is eligible for dependent coverage under any medical, dental or prescription drug benefit plan sponsored by the City of Newark shall be entitled only to such dependent coverage for said plan and shall not be entitled to coverage as a subscriber to said health plan provided under this agreement except where more than one family member is represented by this Agreement, the subscriber shall be the employee family-member with the earliest date of birth.

There is a voluntary incentive cash waiver program (Annual payment = 10% of the employee's share of the premium for each year that he or she waives coverage). Proof of alternate coverage shall be required. In the event of divorce, or loss of alternate coverage the employee who voluntarily waives his/her coverage will be allowed to re-enroll in the benefit plans effective the first day of the following month as currently administered and

shall receive a pro-rat a share of their employee premium for the remainder of that calendar year.

E. Effective January I, 2007, all active employees will make a (non-refundable) ten dollar (\$10.00) per month contribution toward their retiree health benefits.

#### F. RETIREE BENEFITS

Eligible Retirees and their eligible dependents and eligible civil union partner will be entitled to lifetime health insurance coverage until the date of the retiree's death as indicated below.

Effective June 1, 2008:

- All Medicare (Parts A and B) eligible retirees and their eligible dependents (legal spouse or eligible Civil Union partner) will be ineligible for the City's traditional retiree health plan offered by Horizon Blue Cross Blue Shield of New Jersey (hospitalization/medsurgical).
- All Medicare (Parts A and B) eligible/enrolled retirees and their eligible/enrolled spouse or Civil Union partner who are entitled to City funded retiree health benefits will be entitled to enroll in the contracted carrier provided Medicare retiree plan. The City agrees to assume the full employer billed cost of the carrier provided Medicare retiree plan for the eligibly enrolled population.
- The City will no longer provide a separate Medicare supplemental retirce health insurance plan for Medicare eligible retirees or their Medicare eligible dependents. The carrier provided Medicare retiree plan will be the sole employer sponsored retirce health benefit plan for all Medicare eligible retirees and their eligible spouse/Civil Union partner.
- The enrollment under the carrier provided Medicare retiree plan will be based on single-member enrollment. Therefore, the eligible retiree and eligible spouse/Civil Union partner will be provided with separate enrollment under the carrier provided Medicare retiree plan.
- All confirmed Medicare ineligible (based on notification from Medicare indicating Part A
  benefit is not "premium free") retirees and their spouse/Civil Union partner will be entitled
  to the traditional retiree health plan noted in their union contract or by health benefit
  entitlement established by ordinance.
- Eligible retiree's entitlement under the carrier provided Medicare retiree plan will continue for the remainder of the retiree's life.
- Medicare eligible retirees that reside outside of the 50 United States are ineligible to participate in the carrier provided Medicare retiree plan. Traditional retiree plan entitlement will continue for retirees, their spouses and eligible Civil Union Partners that have permanent residence outside of the 50 United States. They will receive benefits in accordance with the contract or by health benefit entitlement established by ordinance.

- Retirees and their eligible spouse who are at least age 65 but ineligible (based on notification from Medicare) for Medicare Part A or B must submit the original notification letter they received from Medicare to the City. These retirees will be in eligible to enroll in the carrier provided Medicare retiree plan and must remain in the traditional retiree plan, receiving benefit levels in accordance with the union contract or by health benefit entitlement established by ordinance.
- Traditional retiree plan entitlement will continue for dependent children of the Medicare eligible retiree. The benefit levels will be provided in accordance with the contract or by health benefit entitlement established by ordinance.
- Uninterrupted member enrollments in the carrier provided Medicare retiree plan is contingent upon timely Part A/B premium payments to Medicare which are made by the Medicare eligible retiree and spouse.
- If reenrollment in the carrier provided Medicare plan is required, the enrollment will be subject to the established enrollment periods provided for the City subscribers and their eligible dependents.
- The City will provide eligible retirees and their eligible dependents or eligible Civil Union partner with a Prescription plan that requires a 20% copayment.

#### G. MEDICARE PART B REIMBURSEMENT

All employees and their eligible spouses and/or civil union partners who retire on or after January I, 1998, and to have earned Medicare Part A coverage shall be reimbursed by the City at the rate of fifty percent (50%) for the purchase of Medicare Part B upon proper notification by the retirees to the City. In no case will Part B reimbursement be made for a retroactive period beyond one year from date of notice by the retiree.

#### H. LIFE INSURANCE

Effective January 1, 1997, Life insurance (death benefit and accidental death and dismemberment coverage) was eliminated for active employees and for those who retire on or after January 1, 1997.

- I. The City reserves the right to change insurance carriers or provide insurance on a self-insured basis during the lifetime of the Agreement so long as substantially similar benefits but no less than those presently in effect are provided. The City shall notify the Union if such changes made. In any event, there shall be no interruption of medical benefit coverage for employees covered by this Agreement.
- J. If health and medical insurance coverage, as described herein, is provided by a contract of insurance, the liability of the City shall be limited to the terms of the contract, provided the contract is in accord with the Agreement.

- K. A provisional employee shall have served a minimum of ninety (90) days of continuous service with the City of Newark to be eligible for health and medical insurance coverage in all instances.
- L. Part-time employees covered by this Agreement are not entitled to any health, medical, hospitalization, dental, life or death benefit insurance of any kind provided by this Agreement. A Part-time employee is defined as any employee who is regularly scheduled to work twenty (20) hours per week or less or who works on scheduled work hours.

# ARTICLE XII

# SICK LEAVE/BEREAVEMENT

#### A. General

Every employee subject to this Agreement shall be entitled to be paid sick leave benefits per annum according to Rule 48:6-1.3, et. seq., of the Civil Service Rules for the State of New Jersey, revised January 19, 1988, and as defined below:

Sick leave may be utilized by employees when they are unable to perform their work by reason of personal illness, accident or exposure to contagious disease. Sick leave may also be used for short periods because of death in the employee's immediate family or for the attendance of the employee upon the member of the immediate family who is seriously ill.

#### B. Amount of Sick Leave

- Sick leave with pay shall be accrued to any full-time employee on the basis of one working day per month during the remainder of the first calendar year of employment after initial appointment and fifteen (15) days in every calendar year thereafter.
- Any amount of sick leave allowance not used in any calendar year shall accumulate to the employee's credit from year to year to be used if and when needed for such purpose.

# C. Reporting of absence on Sick Leave

- if an employee is absent for reasons that entitled him to sick leave, his supervisor shall be notified promptly as of the employee's usual reporting time, except in those work situations where notice must be made prior to the employee's starting time.
  - Failure to so notify his supervisor may be cause for denial of the use of sick leave for the absence and constitute cause for disciplinary action.
  - The City may consider an absence by an employee without notice for five (5) consecutive days to constitute a resignation.

#### D. Verification of Sick Leave

- an employee who shall be absent on sick leave for five (5) or more consecutive working days may be required to submit acceptable medical evidence substantiating the illness.
  - a. An employee who has been absent on sick leave for periods totaling ten (10) days in one calendar year consisting of periods of less than five (5) days, shall submit acceptable medical evidence for any additional sick leave in that year unless such illness is of chronic or recurring nature requiring absences of one day or less in which case only one certificate shall be necessary for a period of six (6) months.
  - b. The City may require proof of illness of an employee on sick leave, whenever such requirement appears reasonable and warranted under the circumstances. Abusive sick leave shall be cause for disciplinary action.
- In case of leave of absence due to exposure to contagious disease a certificate from the Department of Health shall be required.
- 3. The City may require an employee who has been absent because of personal illness, as a condition of his return to duty to be examined, at the expense of the City by a physician designated by the city. Such physician designated by the city may consult with the employee's physician and shall establish whether the employee is capable of performing his normal duties and that his return will not jeopardize the health of other employees.

#### E. Payment for Unused Sick Time at Retirement

 Effective January 1, 1982, the City agrees to pay for unused sick time of retirement under the following formula:

0-50 days - no payment

15-150 days - 25% of its value (35% of its value effective January 1, 1992)

151-days or more - 50% of its value (60% of its value effective January 1, 1992) to a maximum payment of \$12,000.00 (\$15,000 effective January 1, 1993)

F. Effective on the first day of the month following the full execution of the contract all employees covered by this Agreement shall be granted up to three (3) working days with full pay in the event of the death of an immediate family. Immediate family shall be defined as Mother, Father, Spouse, Sister, Brother, Child, Grandparents. Such leave shall be treated as administrative leave and not charged against the employee's leave

record. Employees absent as a result of the death of an immediate family member shall submit verification of relationship. Verification shall include death certificates, mortician affidavit, or newspaper obituary. Upon the employee's return to work from said leave, he/she shall submit the official documentation of the above to the Personnel Department and to his/her Division Manager/Supervisor and same will be attached to the employee's personnel file.

## ARTICLE XIII

# LEAVES OF ABSENCES

- A. Employees subject to this Agreement may be granted a leave of absence in accordance with applicable Civil Service Rules for the State of New Jersey.
- B. Employee representatives shall be permitted an aggregate of six working days each calendar year to attend union conventions (e.g., 3 employee representatives for 2 days or 2 employee representatives for 3 days each).
- C. Employees who are scheduled for Jury Duty shall contact their Department Director and Personnel Director who will make a determination concerning the needs of the City, and whether or not the City will request on behalf of such employee that they be excluded from Jury Duty. If the employee is thereafter assigned to Jury Duty, the City will grant a leave of absence with pay.
- D. Employees who are required, in connection with City business, to appear before a court or other public body on any matter involving the City shall be granted leave with pay for the period of said appearance.

# ARTICLE XIV

#### EMPLOYEE TRAINING

- A. The City and the Union agree that training is an integral function of management and an essential requirement for all employees to promote acceptable and increased levels of competence.
- B. The Union agrees that it will encourage employees to maintain acceptable and increased levels of competence by:
- Keeping abreast of changes occurring in their field, crafts, trade, profession or occupation.
- Participating in development activities in order to perform more efficiently in current and future assignments. These development activities may include on-thejob training and classroom training.
- Realizing that not all training and development are directly related to their jobs and that they have a responsibility for self development.
- Utilizing and sharing with fellow employees new skills acquired through training.
- C. The City will plan and provide for training and development of employees to meet acceptable and increasing levels of competence.
- D. The City and the Union agree to meet upon written notice of either party to consider training and development programs for employees covered by this Agreement. Such programs may include partial or full reimbursement by the City for approved courses which are completed by employees.

# ARTICLE XV

# EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE

- A. The Union agrees to support and cooperate with the City in improving employee performance. In furtherance thereof the Union shall encourage all employees to:
  - Be in attendance and am punctual for scheduled work hours unless unavoidably prevented;
  - 2. Give such effort to their work as consistent with the requirements thereof;
  - Avoid waste in the utilization of materials and supplies;
  - Maintain and improve levels of performance;
  - Assist in preventing accidental injury to themselves and others;
  - Cooperate in the installation of methods and technological improvements and suggest other improvements where possible;
  - Assist where possible in building good will between the City, the Union, and the public at large.
- B. The Union recognized that it is the City's responsibility to determine levels of performance for employees, and to establish standards and methods to provide services to the public in the most efficient manner possible. The union pledges its cooperation in the attainment of such standards and methods.
- C. Pursuant to Civil Service Rules and Regulations standards for acceptable levels of performance may be established and employees evaluated by the City in relation to the duties and responsibilities of each job.
- D. An acceptable level of an employee's performance shall be attained only if performance is adequate and acceptable in all major aspects of the job requirements. Consideration shall be given to all aspects of performance including requisite attitudes and conduct as well as production efficiency of work. Consistently poor judgment and lack of diligence, dependability, inadequate work, improper use of leave, and personal relationships which hamper individual or group effectiveness are representative of conduct and attitudes which may be the basis for disapproval of a salary increment or adjustment.

E. Appeals from denial of salary increment of adjustment for failure to meet acceptable levels of employee performance may be processed through the grievance procedure.

# ARTICLE XVI

# **BULLETIN BOARDS**

Bulletin Boards shall be made available by the City at each work location for the use of the Union for the purpose of posting union announcements and other information of a non-controversial nature. The Director of the Department, or his representative may have removed from the Bulletin Boards any material which does not conform with the intent the provision of this Article.

# ARTICLE XVII

# **DEDUCTIONS FROM SALARY**

A. The City agrees to deduct from the salaries of the employees subject to this Agreement dues for the Union. Such deductions shall be made income clients with Chapter 310, Public Laws of 1967, N.J.S.A. (R.S.) 52:14-15.9e, as amended. Said monies together with records of any corrections shall be transmitted to the Union Office by the fifteenth (15th) of each month following the monthly pay period in which deductions were made.

## ARTICLE XVIII

# REPRESENTATION FEE

## I. Purpose of Fee

Beginning thirty (30) days after agreement on this contract, all eligible non-member employees in this unit will be required to pay the majority representative a representation fee in lieu of services rendered by the majority representative. Nothing herein shall be deemed to require any employee to become a member of the majority representative.

#### Amount of Fee

Prior to the beginning of each contract year, the Union will notify the City in writing of the amount of regular membership dues initiation fees and assessments charged by the Union to its own members for that contract year, and the amount of the representation fee for that contract year. Any changes in the representation fee structure during the

contract year shall be in accordance with the above Article II.

The representation fee in lieu of dues shall be in an amount equivalent to the regular membership dues, initiation fees and assessments charged by the majority representative to its own members less the cost of benefits financed through the dues, fees and assessments available to or benefiting only, its members, but in no event shall such fee exceed 85% of the regular membership dues, fees and assessments.

# 3. Deduction and Transmission of Fee

After verification by the City that an employee must pay the representation fee, the City will deduct the fee for all eligible employees in accordance with this Article.

The mechanics of the deduction of representation fees and the transmission of such fees to the Union will, as nearly as possible, be the same as those used for the deduction and transmission of regular membership dues to the Union.

The City shall deduct the representation fee as soon as possible after the tenth day following reentry into this unit for employees who previously served in a position identified as excluded or confidential, for individuals reemployed in this unit from a reemployment list, for employees returning from leave without pay, and for previous employee members who become eligible for the representation fee because of non-member status.

The City shall deduct the representation fee from a new employee as soon as possible after thirty (30) days from the beginning date of employment in a position in this unit.

### 4. Demand and Return System

The representation fee in lieu of dues shall be available to the Union if the procedures hereinafter are maintained by the Union. The burden of proof under the system is on the Union.

The Union shall return any part of the representation fee paid by the employee which represents the employee's additional pro rata share of expenditures by the Union that is either in aid of activities or causes of a partisan political or ideological nature only incidentally related to the terms and conditions of employment, or applied towards the cost of any other benefits available only to members of the majority representative.

The employee shall be entitled to a review of the amount of the representation fee by requesting the Union to substantiate the amount charged for the representation fee. This review shall be accorded in conformance with the internal steps and procedures established by the Union.

The Union shall submit a copy of the Union review to the City. The deduction of the representation fee shall be available only if the Union establishes and maintains this review system.

If the employee is dissatisfied with the Union's decision, he may appeal to a three-member board established by the Governor.

# City Held Harmless

The Union hereby agrees that it will indemnify and hold the City harmless from any claims, actions, proceedings or judgments, brought by any employee in the negotiations unit which arise from the provisions of this Article. The City shall not be liable to the Union for any retroactive or past do representation fee for an

employee who was identified by the City as excluded or confidential or in good faith was mistakenly or inadvertently omitted from deduction of the representation fee.

#### Legal Requirements

Provisions in this clause are further conditioned upon all other requirements set by statute and applicable law.

# Notifications Concerning Employees

The City agrees to provide to the Union, on a semi-annual basis, a complete up-to-date listing of all employees covered by this Contract. Such listing shall include the employee's job classification, work location, home address and membership status as it appears on the records of the City. The Union shall disclose such information only to its officials and representatives whose duties require access to such information. The City will notify all employees whose titles are listed in Appendix A of this Contract AFSCME is the only employee organization that can represent them in matters pertaining to wages, hours of work and other terms and conditions of employment.

- 8. If during the life of this Agreement there shall be any change in the rate of membership dues, Union shall furnish to the City written notice prior to the effective date of such change and shall furnish to the City either new authorizations from its member showing the authorized deduction for each employee or an official notification on the letterhead of the Union and signed by the President and Secretary of the Union advising of such changed deduction.
- 9. The Union will provide the necessary "Check-Off Authorization" form and the Union will secure the signatures of its members on the forms and deliver the signed forms to the Director of Finance. The Union shall indemnify, defend and save the City harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits or other forms of liability that shall arise out of or by reason of action taken by the City in reliance upon salary deduction authorization cards submitted by the Union to the City or in reliance upon the official notification on the letterhead of the Union and signed by the Pres. and Sec. of the Union advising of such changed deduction.

#### ARTICLE XIX

# NO STRIKE AND NO LOCKOUT PLEDGE

- A. During the term of this Agreement the Union agrees on behalf of itself and each of its members that there will be no strike of any kind and the City agrees that it will not cause any lockout.
- B. The Union covenants and agrees that needed the Union nor any person acting in its behalf will cause, authorize, or support, nor will any of its members take part in any strike (i.e., the concerted failure to report for duty, or willful absence of any employee from this position, or stoppage of work or abstinence in whole or in part, from the full, faithful, and proper performance of the employee's duties of employment),—work stoppage, slowdown, walkout or other job action against the City. The Union agrees that such action would constitute a material breach of this Agreement.
- C. In the event of a strike, slowdown, walkout or job action, it is covenanted and agreed that participation in any such activity by any Union shall be deemed grounds for termination of employment of such employee or employees subject however, to the application of the Civil Service Law.
- D. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to limit or restrict the City in its right to seek and obtain such judicial relief as it may be entitled to have in law or in equity for injunction or damages or both the event of such breach by the Union or its members.

#### ARTICLE XX

#### NON-DISCRIMINATION

- A. There shall be no unlawful discrimination by the City or the Union against any employee on account of any protected classification under law, including race, color, religion, creed, sex, national origin, age, sexual orientation, gender, marital status, familial status, disability or handicap.
- B. There shall be no discrimination, interference, restraint, or coercion by the City or any of its Representatives against any of the employees covered under this Agreement because of their membership or non-membership in the Union or because of any lawful activities by such employees on behalf of the Union. The Union, its members and agents shall not discriminate against interfere with, restrain or coerce any employees covered under this Agreement who are not members of the union.

# ARTICLE XXI

# LONGEVITY PROGRAM

Longevity payments will be eliminated for any and all employees hired on or after 1/1/2013.

 Longevity benefits shall be granted to all employees covered by this Agreement in accordance with the following schedule:

Beginning January 1 following the 10th year of service	-	4%
Beginning January 1 following the 15th year of service	-	6%
Beginning January 1 following the 20th year of service	-	8%
Beginning January 1 following the 25th year of service		10%
Beginning January 1 following the 30th year of service	-	14%

2. Longevity Benefits shall be granted to all employees covered by this Agreement in accordance with Ordinance 6S&Fba adopted November 2, 1966.

#### ARTICLE XXII

# SEPARABILITY AND SAVINGS

In any provisions of this Agreement or any application of this Agreement to any employee or group of employees is held invalid by operation of law or by a Court or other tribunal of competent jurisdiction, such provisions shall be inoperative but all other provisions shall not be affected thereby and shall continue in full force and effect.

# ARTICLE XXIII

#### **MISCELLANEOUS**

- A. Insofar as practical and possible within the limited budgetary and space considerations, the City will provide parking facilities for employees covered by this Agreement at various work locations. In the event the City establishes a policy of charging its employees for use of parking facilities this policy shall apply to all employees covered by this Agreement.
- B. It is understood by and between the parties that any provisions of this Agreement requiring municipal action to permit its implementation by amendment of law or by providing additional funds therefore shall not become effective until the appropriate municipal action has been taken.
- C. Employees covered by this Agreement shall not be required to supervise youth participants in City programs.

#### ARTICLE XXIV

### **FULLY BARGAINED PROVISIONS**

- A. This Agreement represents and incorporates the complete and final understanding and settlement by the parties of all bargainable issues which were or could have been the subject of negotiations. During the term of this Agreement, neither party will be required to negotiate with respect to any such matter whether or not covered by this Agreement, and whether or not with the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiate or sign this Agreement.
- B. This Agreement shall not be modified either in whole or in part except by a written instrument, and which instrument is executed by both parties.

#### ARTICLE XXV

### DURATION

This Agreement shall be in full force and effect as of January 1, 2015 and shall be in effect to and including December 31, 2018, without any reopening date. The Agreement shall continue in full force and effect from year to year thereafter, unless one party or the other gives notice, in writing, at least ninety (90) days prior to the expiration date of this Agreement of a desire to change, modify or terminate the Agreement.

#### Article XXVI

### EXCLUSIVITY

Dues deductions for any employee in the bargaining unit shall be limited to AFSCME, the majority representative. Employee shall be eligible to withdraw such authorization only upon the filing of Notice of Withdrawal. Such notice shall be effective to halt deductions as of January 1 or July 1 next succeeding the date on which Notice of Withdrawal is filed, in accordance with Title 52:14-15.9e of the New Jersey Statutes, revised December 22, 1981.

#### ARTICLE XXVII

#### UNIFORMS

The City agrees to provide uniforms to those active employees covered by this Agreement who have been identified by their respective departments and are required to wear uniforms. The employee will be responsible for cleaning and maintenance of each uniform.

Section A: Effective January 1, 2015, all active employees required to wear a uniform will be entitled to a clothing allowance and the amount of \$200.00 per year. The City's practice concerning prorating of clothing allowance shall continue.

Section B: Effective January 1, 2016, all active employees required to wear a uniform will be entitled to a clothing allowance in the amount of \$225.00 per year. The City's practice concerning prorating of clothing allowance shall continue.

Section C: Effective January 1, 2017, all active employees required to wear a uniform will be entitled to a clothing allowance in the amount of \$250.00 per year. The City's practice concerning prorating of clothing allowance shall continue.

Section D: Effective January 1, 2018, all active employees required to wear a uniform will be entitled to a clothing allowance in the amount of \$275.00 per year. The City's practice concerning prorating of clothing allowance shall continue.

reconstruction of the same and property of professional

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have set their hands and seals at Newark, New Jersey on this 27th day of New Jersey

CITY OF NEWARK

CITY OF NEWARK

KENNETH LOUIS, CITY CLERK

11/37/18

RASJ. BARAKA, MAYOR

WITNESSED:

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR

ERIC S. PENNINGTON, ESQ. BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

KENYATTA STEWART,

**CORPORATION COUNSEL** 

AFSCME LOCAL 2297,

MECHANICS

BY: TERRY L. WOODROW, STAFF REPRESENTATIVE, AFSCME COUNCIL 52-6-3

BY: Hason McBride PRESIDENT,

AFSCME LOGAL 2297



Department of Administration

A City We Can All Believe in

Michael E. Greene, Esq. Assistant Business Administrator

920 Broad Street, Room 210 Newark, NJ 07102 Ph: 973-733-6666 Fax: 973-802-1036 Email: greenem@cl.newark.nj us

To:

American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees AFL-CIO, Local 2297

(Supervisors) - Attn.: Terry Woodrow, Staff Representative

Date: April 13, 2018

Re:

COLLECTIVE NEGOTIATIONS Between the City of Newark and AFSCME, Local 2297

(Supervisors) - City Memorandum of Agreement

The accompanying Memorandum of Agreement contains proposals made by the City of Newark to modify the contemplated successor collective agreement between the City of Newark ("City") and American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, Local 2297 (Supervisors), for the period January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2018.

The City reserves the right to add, delete, modify or withdraw any proposal set forth below at any time and/or present new proposals, unless otherwise agreed to by the City of Newark.

In addition, any agreement on an Individual proposal is expressly conditioned upon there being reached agreement to on all terms and conditions – economic and non-economic, and such agreement reduced to a full and final settlement of all issues in these negotiations, and memorialized in a writing between the City and the Association.

# MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

As and between the City of Newark ("City") and American Federation of State, County And Municipal Employees AFL-CIO, Local 2297 (Supervisors) ("Union") (The City and the Union are collectively referred to herein as "Parties"), and subject to the ratification vote of the Union's membership, and, further, subject to Municipal Council approval and ratification, the Collective Negotiations Agreement currently in effect between the City and Union entitled "Agreement Between City of Newark And American Federation Of State, County And Municipal Employees AFL-CION, Local 2297 (Supervisors)" ("Agreement"), effective January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014, is hereby amended as follows:

- Article XXV "DURATION" is to be amended to reflect the duration of the Agreement for a period of four (4) years from January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2018.
- 2. Article V(a) "WORK FORCE CHANGES" is revised as follows:
  - a. Paragraph "E," shall read as follows:

With the exception of Veterans preference, the City will make its selection to fill a vacancy from among the three (3) highest scores on the promotional list in a manner consistent with Civil Service Commission regulations, procedures and case law.

b. Paragraph "I," shall read as follows:

The City will notify the Union at least one week prior to the decision to consolidate or eliminate a position covered by Article I of this Agreement. Insofar as possible and practicable, the City will delay action implementing its decision until after the Union has had at least one discussion with the City on the matter.

- 3. Article VII "OVERTIME" is revised as follows:
  - a. In Section "B," "1," the sentence following the header "Overtime," shall be revised to read as follows:

Overtime compensation shall be at straight time up to the 40<sup>th</sup> hour worked in each week. Overtime compensation at time-and-a-half (1.5) shall be calculated on all overtime hours after the first 40 hours. Paid time off (i.e. sick (with appropriate medical documentation), Vacation, Holiday, Compensatory time, Etc.) shall count toward the 40-hours worked in each week.

- Article VIII "Compensation" is revised as follows:
  - a. In Section "A"

- Effective January 1, 2015, the 2014 base salary of all employees shall be increased by 0%,
- ii. Effective January 1, 2016, the 2015 base salary of all employees shall be increased by 0%. However, all eligible employees shall receive a one-time stipend of one thousand and four hundred dollars (\$1,400.00). It is understood that this is a one-time, non-recurring payment that is non-pensionable.
- Effective January 1, 2017, the 2016 base salary of all employees shall be increased by 2%.
- Effective January 1, 2018, the 2017 base salary of all employees shall be increased by 2%.

Upon expiration of the Agreement, no salary adjustments or increase until a successor contract is reached.

#### 5. Article XI - "HEALTH INSURANCE"

The entire article shall read as follows:

The provisions of this Article shall be administered in accord with the provisions of P.L.2011, Chapter 78, as presently provided.

The City, as a distressed municipality, might elect to join the State Health Benefits Program at a future date. As a result of said participation, the State Health Benefits Program (SHBP) may change benefits and/or benefits levels currently offered. The City has no input into or control over any such changes. However, as a potential participating SHBP employer, the City is governed by any such changes. Accordingly, when SHBP changes a benefit/benefit level, the benefit and/or benefit level in this agreement will be adjusted to reflect the change. The City will not be liable for any such change in benefit level or the impact to any such change. In addition, no grievance or complaint against the City challenging any such change can be processed under the grievance procedures of this agreement or in any court of law or administrative agency. This provision does not preclude the Union, or an individual employee of the City from filing an appropriate challenge against the State for any such change. The City will provide notification of any such changes to the Union and employees. This provision covers all plans administered under the New Jersey State Health

 $<sup>^{1}</sup>$  Ellgible employees are defined as those active employees who are on City payroll at the time that the distribution is due.

Benefits Programs including but not limited to healthcare, prescription drugs, etc.

Effective January 1, 2016, the City will eliminate the Traditional Plan.

Effective January 1, 2017, the City will create a formulary for Prescription coverage and increase the cost for brand name drugs. Including, but not limited to Retail Prescription Drugs: Tier 1: Generic Drugs or Supply (\$5), Tier 2: Preferred Brand Drugs or Supply (\$15), and Tier 3: Non-Preferred Brand Drugs or Supply (\$25). Mail Order Prescription Drugs: Generic Drug or Supply (\$0), Preferred Brand Name Drug or Supply (\$5) and Non-Preferred Brand Name Drug or Supply (\$10).

# 6. Article XX - "NON-DISCRIMINATION" - is revised as follows:

a. In Paragraph "A," to read as follows:

There shall be no unlawful discrimination by the City or the Union against any employee on account of any protected classification under law, including race, color, religion, creed, sex, national origin, age, sexual orientation, gender, marital status, familial status, disability or handicap.

# 7. Article XXIII - "MISCELLANEOUS" is revised as follows:

The language of Paragraph "B" of the expired agreement is to be eliminated in its entirety.

Add the following language as a new provision under this Article:

Supervisors shall not be required to supervise the "Summer Youth Employment Program" participants.

# Article XXVII - "Uniforms" - shall be amended to provide as follows:

- a. Section D, effective January 1, 2015, all active employees required to wear a uniform will be entitled to a clothing allowance in the amount of \$200.00 per year. The City's practice concerning prorating of clothing allowance shall continue;
- Section E, effective January 1, 2016, all active employees required to wear a uniform will be entitled to a clothing allowance in the amount of \$200.00 per year.
   The City's practice concerning prorating of clothing allowance shall continue;
- c. Section F, effective January 1, 2017, all active employees required to wear a uniform will be entitled to a clothing allowance in the amount of \$200,00 per year. The City's practice concerning prorating of clothing allowance shall continue; and

d. Section G, effective January 1, 2018, all active employees required to wear a uniform will be entitled to a clothing allowance in the amount of \$200.00 per year. The City's practice concerning prorating of clothing allowance shall continue.

It is understood that this uniform allowance shall be paid to each employee each year of the contract as indicated. The uniform allowance will be paid no later than the last payroll of the year. It is further understood that this uniform allowance is an annual one-time non-recurring payment that is non-pensionable.

In the event that any provision of this Memorandum of Agreement shall at any time be declared invalid by Legislative Act or any Court of competent jurisdiction, or through government regulations or decree, such decision shall not invalidate the entire Memorandum of Agreement, it being the express intention of the Parties hereto that all other provision not declared invalid shall remain in full force and effect.

This Memorandum of Agreement represents the final and binding agreement of the Parties as to the matters set forth herein, and supersedes any agreements, written or oral. Any and all portions of the Agreement not addressed in the Memorandum of Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

# FOR THE CITY OF NEWARK

ERIC. S. PENNINGTON, ESQ. BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR

FOR THE AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES, AFL-CION. LOCAL 2297 (SUPERVISORS)

TERRY WOODROW, AFSCME

COUNCIL 5263

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

LAW DEPARTMENT

# Resolution of the City of Newark, A.J.

NO. 781-C

Date of Adoption SEP 1 9 2018

# Title Page

180-284

Dept/ Agency: Administration/Division of Personnel
Action: (X) Ratifying (X) Authorizing () Amending
Type of Service: Labor Agreement
Purpose: Execution of Labor Agreement
Entity Name: American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees
(AFSCME), AFL-CIO, District 52, Local 2297 (Supervisors)
Entity Address: 516 Johnston Avenue, Jersey City, New Jersey 07304
Project Fiscal Impact: \$1,782,079.68 (Average Cost Per Year Over the Term of
Agreement)
Contract Period: January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2018
Contract Basis: () Bid () State Vendor () Prof. Ser. () EUS
() Fair & Open () No Reportable Contributions () RFP () RFQ
() Private Sale () Grant () Sub-recipient (X) n/a
Additional Information:

MINITURE NAME AND THE WARK, A.J.

ROST 415

2013 1197 27 P. 15: 95

Approved as to Form and Legality on Basis of Facts Set Forth	Factual contents certified by			
Corporation Counsel	Title			
Council Member	presents the following Resolution:			

# Resolution of the City of Newark, N.J.

NO. 781-C

Date of Adoption SEP 1 9 2018

Approved as to Form and Legality on Basis of Facts Set Forth	Factual contents certified by
Corporation Counsel	type Dr. C. Preserve Dir.
Council Member Council of the 11)	Aslo presents the following Resolution:

WHEREAS, the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME), District 52, Local 2297 (Supervisors) has been certified by the Public Employment Relations Commission as the majority representative for certain employees of the City of Newark, New Jersey, as that term is defined in the New Jersey Employer-Employee Relations Act, N.J.S.A. 34:13A-1 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, the City of Newark has negotiated in good faith with said majority representative over terms and conditions of employment for the period covering January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2018; and

WHEREAS, as a result of collective bargaining negotiations and settlement, the terms and conditions of employment for the aforementioned period have been imposed upon the parties and are incorporated into the Labor Agreement attached hereto. The agreement shall be binding upon all employees in the unit represented by said majority representative, whether or not they are members of such representative, as provided in N.J.S.A. 34:13A-5.3.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEWARK, NEW JERSEY, THAT:

- 1. The Mayor and Business Administrator and/or the Assistant Business Administrator of the City of Newark, New Jersey, are authorized to execute the aforementioned Labor Agreement on behalf of the City of Newark, New Jersey, with American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME), AFL-CIO, District 52, Local 2297 (Supervisors), 516 Johnston Avenue, Jersey City, New Jersey 07304, in the amount of \$7,128,318.70 (\$.1,782,079.68 average cost per year over the Term of Agreement) with a contract term from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2018.
- The Agreement and Memorandum of Agreement (collectively "Labor Agreement") are ratified from January 1, 2015, to the date of adoption by the Municipal Council.
- 3. The executed copy of the Labor Agreement and corresponding Cost Analysis shall be filed with the Office of the City Clerk, and the Public Employment Relations Commission c/o Public Sector Librarian, IMLR Library Rutgers University, Ryders Lane and Clifton Avenue, New Brunswick, New Jersey 08903, as required by N.J.S.A. 34:13A-8.2 and N.J.S.A. 34:13A:16.8(d)(2).
- An executed copy of the Agreement shall be submitted to the Division of Local Government Services by the Director of Personnel.

- 2 -

781-C

SEP 1 9 2018

#### STATEMENT

Resolution ratifying and authorizing the execution of a Labor Agreement between the City of Newark and American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME), AFL-CIO, District 52, Local 2297 (Supervisors) covering January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2018, for the projected fiscal impact amount of \$1,782,079.68 (average cost per year over the term of the Labor Agreement) for a projected total amount of \$7,128,318.70.

CERTIFIED TO BY ME THIS

SEP 2 0 2018

Do not use space below this line

			RE	COR	O OF COUNCIL	VOTE	ON F	INAL	PAS	SAGE				
Council Member	AYE	NAY	NV	AB	Council Member	AVE	NAY	NV	AB	Council Member	AYE	NAV	MV	AF
Amador				~	McCallum, Jr.	~				Quintana, vice Pres.		UAL	- 144	-
Gonzalez				1	McIver	V				Ramos, Jr.	V			
James	1				Osborne	V				Crump, President	V			_
✓ Indicates Vote			AB - Absent				NV-1	Not Ve	otino					

Adopted ut a meeting of the Municipal Council of the City of Newark, N.J., \_\_\_

President of the Council

Kenn D.

City Clerk

This Resolution when adopted must remain in the custody of the City Clerk. Certified copies are available.
18-1155

#### SUMMARY FORM

#### COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT PUBLIC SECTOR / NON-POLICE & NON-FIRE

Bection i: Agreement Deta	lls City of Newark							
Public Employers						th End		
Employee Organization	American Federal	lina of State, County	and Municipal E	موامعين أحجر والم	97 (Super) Emp	tyres in Unit 34		
Base Year Cortract Terror	1/1/2013	12/31/2014	Hera Contract Term 1/1/2015 12/31/2018					
Type of Settlement:	Uediated Seals	ement 🗆 Fr	ed-Finder Recomme	niim E	Votestay Settlement	☐ 24bat	Corplation	
			Col	шп А	Color	A A		
			Hata Year	· Total Costs (vans (present)	Fratewo San	· Tetal Costs	eli	
Section II: Economic								
florn 1 <u>Sat</u>		~~~	\$1,755,571		\$1,759,571			
	autary		\$0		50			
	gevely.		\$42,257		574.090			
	TAID YEARS UCD	-	\$6,600		Sd 800	-		
Hem 5								
Itan i		NO.						
lian I								
tiem 8								
tiern 10								
lism II								
flam 12								
Any ectional speak tell has superior th	M	احتدين احت						
Section til; Totala - seed me	a nead com		51,762,371	*************	\$1.037.201	anne de l'anne de l'anne		
			l r	(dħ)	(रिटाई)	1		
Section IV: Assessment			TIETH PLEASE	WENT ANALYSIS		-		
Isolan impress spares	91,702,371		nels worke	- CITE NOOL TOLD				
Ellectivo Dela (mistrocci)		1/1/2015	1/1/2016	1/1/2017	1/1/2018			
Paccal burnos		0	0	2%	215			
les/pardrams		30	\$47.600	\$35,111	535,014			
Continue taken (antique separate		51,765.571	\$1,755,571	\$1,700,882	X1 824.460			
Section V: श्रामध्य of Section		100 CO	TURIA .					
Date pared fasters be also and p		1.00						
Omercal ference by the new								
Section VI				~ ***				
יום: ביון אַראין וייבייני יויאין	<u>লক্ষরী</u>							
ConditionPea		Eat Iya	\$01,010 753					
Copano Communa			\$3,115 281					
Personal			524,583 207	V1010	-			
Ders)			\$2,669,638					
Chann			52 400,000					
The understand continues t	us the foregoing Bour	ne are true and fo wage	that if any of the fo	ranging items are laise	o, gains la subbeel en pomb	ment.		
Section VII								
Propered by:	Darlene T			TUO	Budget Officer			
		Print Huma			NAME OF THE OWNER OWNER OF THE OWNER OWNE			
				0台.	7/16/2018			
		Signature						

# Resolution of the City of Newark, N.J.

NO. 781-B

Date of Adoption SEP 1 9 2018

Title Page

18C-285 11/27/18

Dept/ Agency: Administration/Division of Personnel
Action: (X) Ratifying (X) Authorizing () Amending
Type of Service: Labor Agreement
Purpose: Execution of Labor Agreement
Entity Name: American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees
(AFSCME), AFL-CIO, District 52, Local 2297 (Mechanics)
Entity Address: 516 Johnston Avenue, Jersey City, New Jersey 07304
Project Fiscal Impact: \$737,550.27 (Average Cost Per Year Over the Term of
Agreement)
Contract Period: January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2018
Contract Basis: () Bid () State Vendor () Prof. Ser. () EUS
() Fair & Open () No Reportable Contributions () RFP () RFQ
() Private Sale () Grant () Sub-recipient (X) n/a
Additional Information:

THE VARIANTAL ROOM 415

Approved as to Form and Legality on Basis of Facts Set Forth

Factual contents certified by

Council Member \_\_\_\_\_\_ presents the following Resolution:

# Resolution of the City of Newark, N.J.

		7.	67
NO	1 6	71-	5
TAO.	1 4	3.1	

Date of Adoption SEP 1 9 2018

Approved as to Form and Legality on Ba	sis of Facts Set Forth	Factual conten	7
ACTINES	Corporation Counsel	Bella Canal	PERSONNE DR
Council Member Council	of the W	Rale presents	s the following Resolution:

WHEREAS, American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME), District 52, Local 2297 (Mechanics) has been certified by the Public Employment Relations Commission as the majority representative for certain employees of the City of Newark, New Jersey, as that term is defined in the New Jersey Employer-Employee Relations Act, N.J.S.A. 34:13A-1 et seq; and

WHEREAS, the City of Newark has negotiated in good faith with said majority representative over terms and conditions of employment for the period covering January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2018; and

WHEREAS, as a result of collective bargaining negotiations and settlement, the terms and conditions of employment for the aforementioned period have been imposed upon the parties and are incorporated into the Labor Agreement attached hereto. The agreement shall be binding upon all employees in the unit represented by said majority representative, whether or not they are members of such representative, as provided in N.J.S.A. 34:13A-5.3.

# NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEWARK, NEW JERSEY, THAT:

- 1. The Mayor and Business Administrator and/or the Assistant Business Administrator of the City of Newark, New Jersey, are authorized to execute the aforementioned Labor Agreement on behalf of the City of Newark, New Jersey, with American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME), AFL-CIO, District 52, Local 2297 (Mechanics), 516 Johnston Avenue, Jersey City, New Jersey 07304, in the amount of \$2,950,201.09, (\$737,550.27 average cost per year over the term of Agreement) with a contract term from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2018.
- The Municipal Council of the City of Newark ratifies the Agreement and Memorandum of Agreement (collectively "Labor Agreement") from January 1, 2015 to the date of adoption.
- 3. The executed copy of the Labor Agreement and corresponding Cost Analysis shall be filed with the Office of the City Clerk, and the Public Employment Relations Commission c/o Public Sector Librarian, IMLR Library Rutgers University, Ryders Lane and Clifton Avenue, New Brunswick, New Jersey 08903, as required by N.J.S.A. 34:13A-8.2 and N.J.S.A. 34:13A:16.8(d)(2).

7R1-B

SEP 1 9 2010

 An executed copy of the Agreement shall be submitted to the Division of Local Government Services by the Director of Personnel.

#### STATEMENT

Resolution ratifying and authorizing the execution of a Labor Agreement between the City of Newark and American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME), AFL-CIO, District 52, Local 2297 (Mechanics) covering January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2018, for the projected fiscal impact amount of \$737,550.27 (average cost per year over the term of the Labor Agreement) for a projected total amount of \$2,950,201.09.

CERTIFIED TO BY ME THIS SEP 2 0 2018

Do not use space below this line

			RE	CORI	OF COUNCIL	VOTE	ON F	INAI	PAS	SAGE				
Council Member	AYE	NAY	MV	AB	Council Member	1	NAY		AB	To	AVE	NAY	DIV	40
Amador				V	McCallum, Jr.	V				Quintana, Vice Pres.		IVAI	INV	AC
Gonzalez				/	McIver	N				Ramos, Jr.	-			-
James	/				Osborne	V				Crump, President				
	/ Indica	ites Vo	te		A	B - Abs	sent			NV - I	Not Ve	oting		

Adopted at a meeting of the Mynicipal Council of the City of Newark, N.J.,

President of the Council

SEP 1 9 ZUTB

City Clerk

### SUMMARY FORM

#### COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT PUBLIC SECTOR / NON-POLICE & NON-FIRE

Section I: Agreement Deta						
Potic Employer	City of Norark				County Essex	
Employee Organization	American Federal	lan of State, Count	Legiphould bate	Employees (AFL CTC)	//Local 2297) Employees in Unit 14	
Dasa Year Contract Terro	1/1/2013	12/31/2014	Illera Con	fred Term 1/1/201	15 12/31/2018	
Type of Sealement	Lited world Stroke	ment 🗀 F	ad Front Recomm		1	Concistion
	ř.		Data Year	Later A - Total Costs (avoid a pressur)	Cábrin B Her Dare Year - Total Corts Fert Year of Score Lead 27140 277	
Bectlon II: Economic						
litem 1 . Sali	<u> </u>		\$720,579		5720 570	
Item 7 Loan	rmant	_	30		50	
Ment 3 . Lon	्राचेत्		\$42,207		574,090	
Man 4 . Ctein	ING AHOMENCE	_	\$10,850		\$10,850	
Ibm5 .		-			-	
lism 8						
llam 7		-				
Rem B .						
Ilan 9		_				
Hem 10	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~					
floatii		-			***************************************	
Men 13		-				
Water and the state of	et .	Assessitive			***************************************	
Section III: Totala - see em	18   cl cl cl cl		2770,693		\$812,319	
				[ctr]	(Tetal)	
8			i ''	,,	(rea)	
Carlos Classics						
Section IV: proportion control			nswamte	TIENT VIVIA		
	5770,628	_				
Effective Date (mittymy)		1/1/2015	1/1/2016	1/1/2017	1/1/2018	
Pacand transce		0	a	2%	2%	
(C) CI UNICO		20	\$10,000	\$14,532	\$14,022	
I to the same of the second		\$720,570	\$720,570	5741.711	\$765,933	~~~~~~
Section V; Impact of Settleme	בו לנונוני נקנומים - זבו	mass over term of age	canact			- STREET, STRE
Paramete patrilles of the tea	s para thravet	1.00				
Orth subst (seash to les era m	i di igrana q					
Section VI						
Halangara and though the sales	Autual					
Catalination		Ame top	501.018,753			
Carteria Constitue		-	\$3,115.281			
ymathra			\$24,583,207			
Date!			\$2,669,038			
Now						
The understand carbins the	I the foresting figure \$	अव रिएक कार्य के कार्याव	that II any of the fo	raqolno liums tre false,	the lateral produced.	
Section VII						
Proposed by:	Darlene Tot	-		Tab:	Budget Officer	
		Print Hama				
		Signstay		0212	7/16/2018	